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PRECLINICAL AND CLINICAL TESTING BY THE
PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY. 1976

TUESDAY, JANUARY 20, 1878

U.S. SexaTe,
StrcoMMITTEE 08 HEALTH oF THE
Cosxrsirrree ox Lanor axp PesLic WEeLFARE;
SURCOMOUTTEE 05 ADMINISTRATIVE PRACTICE
AND Precentre oF THE COMMITIEE 0N THE Jupiciary,
Washington, I.C.

The subcommittees met, pursuant to notice, at 9:30 a.m., in room
4232 Dirkeen Senate Office Building, Senator Edward M. Kennedy
(chairman of the snheommittees), presiding.

Prezent : Senators Kennedy, Nelson. Tavits. and Beall.

Committee staff prosent : Jay B, Cutler, minority counsel.

Senator Kexyepy. We will come ta order,

It 35 now 6 months since witnos<es from i he Food and Drug Admin-
istration appeared before 1hese subcommitiecs to raise serious ques-
fions about the ntegrity of the scientific data submitted to the KDA
by the (. . Searle (o,

The issues raised in July are at the very heart of the regnlatory
process. Althoush judgments in that process may reasonably differ,
all judgments are made from the same foundation-—scientific data.

If the integvity of that data js questioned, then the whole regila-
fory process is questioned. If the data are proven false and mislead-
ing, then the reanlatory decisions may be tragically wrong. Accurate
seience is the best protection the Anserican people have from an unsafe
and ineffective drug supply.

Inaccurate science, sloppy science. fraudulent science—these are
the greatest threats to the health and safety of the American people.
Whether the science is wrong because of clerical error. or because
Af poor techninue, or beeause of incompetence, or becauze of criminal
negligence, is less important than the fact that it is wrong.

For if it is wrong. and if. as in this case, the FDA did not—indeed,
under current practice. conld not—know it was wrong, then the
protective regulatory barrier between a potentially dangerous drug
and the patient is removed.

In the last 6 months, «t these subrommittees’ inzistence, the FDA
has reviewed the raw animal data for seven of (3. ). Searle's prod-
uets. Their task force has done an exhanstive job. The Commissioner
of the FDA has taken a close perzonal mterest. He has kept these
subcominittees fully informed.

He and his staff are to be commended. T would like to single out
for special praise Dr. Adrian Gross, whose professional compe-

(1)
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That is why these problems are so serious. That is why scientific
integrity mnst be maintained. That is why these subeommittees will
insist that the Environmental Protection Ageney. the National Cancer
Institnte, the Consumer Product Safety Commission, and every other
relevant Government agency do what the FDDA iz gning to do—
review the quaiity of their antinal work; identify any problems; pro-
pose solutions and report back to tliese subcommitiess. Thare is no
activity which shonld receive a higher priority.

Senator Javits!? :

Senator Javirs. Mr. Chairman, at the July 10, 1973, hearings, we
lieard dramatic, disquieticg testimony respecting the iniegrity of
the testing of new drugs by the (3. D. Searle & Co.

This testimony regarding the validity of the data schich supports
applications tn test and market a new product caused Senator
Schiweiker, the chairman and myself great concern. We recommended
that the Food and Drug Administration Commissioner, Dr. Schmid?,
initiate a full and complete investigation of the integrity of the ani-
mal data submitted by G. D. Searle & Co. to the FDA in support of
the safetv of its products,

While the final FD.A task force report is nnt eompleted, I have
reviewed the preliminary information presented in Commissioner
Schmidt’s prepared statement. It is deeply disturbing. The deficien-
cies exposed raize eritically serious questions about G. D. Searle & Co.
and the sshole pharmaceutical industry, of which Seacle iz an impor-
tant member.

The public has no choice but to be deeply roncerred about whether
the regulatory process——which requires that the private enterprise
svstern must act in good faith—is, in fact, operating in the public
Interest.

This eritical question is raised—to his great cred’t and commen-
dation—by the Commissioner himself. Tn the draft of %is prepared
statement dated January 18, 1075, he states:

Are the problems found at Searle unique or industrywide® Do thece Hndings
cazt doubt on the safeiy of our foods and drugs?

The first question—whether these problems are industrrvide—we are not
able to answer definitely at thig pnint. Prudence dictates. bowever. that we
assume the presence of an industrywide problem until proven otherwise, and
our plans for the future are based on his assumption.

Dr. Sehmidt may be assured that he will have my ttong continued
support in finding the answer to this critical question. The health
and safety of the American people demand an effective FDA regula-
torv process.

The Commissioner’s conclusion which would “require new Federal
resources and he pgreatly aided by rnew legislatize anthorities” is an
important first step in this direction. I urge him—as ¥ did at the
July 10 hearing—“to be an initiater in terms of recommendations
to us, as to what ought to be done respecting the regulatory process.”

Senator Kexxeny. We welcome back to this committee Dr. Alex-
ander Schmidt, Commissioner of the Food and Drug Administration,
who has appeared before this committee on a number of different
occasions. We always find these appearances usefui and hielpful to us.

As T indicated in my opening statement, we want to express, from
the committee’s point of view, and T suppose from an individual’s
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tence, integrity and unylelding dedication to his job are primarily
responsible for uncovering this probfem.

There is much talk about bureauerats these days—99 percent of it
derogatory. I think the American people should know about Dr.
Adrian Gross and the thousands of others like him in every branch
of this government who =~ark hard and well in service to the pecple
of this country.

I have personally reviewed the findings of the FD.A task force. I
believe they cast doubt upon the integrity of the research program
at Searle. Whether the programs at Searle are shared by other
pharmaceutical companies is not clear. But I do not believe we can
take that chance. These subcommittees will insist that the FDA
immediately institute a program to review the work of the other
drug manufacturers.

We stand ready to work to provide FDA with the resources it needs
to do the job. We intend to monitor this activity and we expect the
Comnissioner to report back to us expeditionsly,

We must know the extent of this problem, and we must know
quickly. We cannot have millions of Americans taking drugs which
were deemed safe on the basis of unsound scientific data. These sub-
committees will press the FD.A until the facts are known, the prob-
lems are iden*ified and solutions are developed.

The importance of animal data to the health policies of this govern-
ment extends far beyond the Food and Drug Administration. The
National Cancer Institute, the Environmental Protection Agency,
the Consumer Product Safety Commission—all depend upon animal
data. This Nation is committed to an all-out effort to conquer cancer,
to clean up the air and water, to detect and eliminate potential car-
cinogens from the environment. We cannot have these efforts under-
mined by unacceptable science. )

The importance of research in these areas cannot be underestimated.
Every day every American is exposed to a variety of potentially
deadly substances. The exposure may be in the form of a drug taken
over many years; it may be artificial colorings in meat; or pollutants
in the air and water or additives in our food.

We must know what. the long-term cumulative cffects of these

exposures are likely to be. Animal studies are an integral part of.

this research. If a drug causes cancer in animals, it is a serious
warning. Physicians must be alerted. Use of the drug must be
restricted. Patients must be informed of the potential risk.

Because so many of us are exposed to so many of these agents, the
potential for extensive harm is great. We can get i idea of the
problem from the DES tragedy; DES-caused cancer occurred years
after the exposure, and in the offspring of the mothers taking the
drug.

There is additional evidence from the current estrogen controversy.
Used since the Inte 1930°s, we are now told that Premarin is directly
Iinked to cancer of the uterus. How many women are at risk? How
many people would be at risk if best-selling drugs are shown to
cause cancer 2C years after they are first taken ? .

There is a long list of potential killers. There is little conclusive
scientific evidence now. If only a small minority of these potential
problems cceur, the results could be eatast rophic.
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poirt of view, the great appreciation that swe have for the coopera-
fion 1248 vou and vonr staff have provided thic committee and for
the dilizence in the work that you have done in the review of this
particalar matter,

We Isok forward to yvour testimony here this morning. If voi; will
introdoce vour colleagties: they are familiar. T think everyhody has
been tere before; but if not, introduce those who have not been here.

STATEMENT OF ALEXANDER M. SCHMIDT, M.D., COMMISSIONER,
F00D AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION; ACCOMPANIED BY RICHAED
A. MERRILI, GENERAL COUNSEL, FDA; RICHARD CROUT, MT,
DIEECTIOR, BUREAU OF DRUGS; ROBERT C. WETHERELL, JR,
DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF LEGISLATIVE SERVICES; CARLTON SHARP,
SEARLE INVESTIGAXION TASK FORCE; WILLIAM D'AGUANNO,
PHD., ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FOR PHARMACOLOGY-TOXICOLOGY,
OYFICE OF SCIERTIFIC EVALUATION; M. ADRIAN GROSS, D.Y.M.,
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FOR SCIENTIFIC COORDINATION; PHILLIP
BROGSKY, CONSUMER SAFETY OFFICER, INSPECTION BRAKCH,
PEITADELPHIA DISTRICT; AND RICHARD RONK, BUREAU OF
F00DS, DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF FOOD AND COLOR ADDITIVES,
A PANEL

Dr. Sesvro. T think all but one or two have been here.

On my immediate left is Mr. Richard Mernill, our General Counsel:
on my tight is Dr. Richard Crout, Director of the Bureau of Dmgs:
on hiz right is Mr. Carlton Sharp. who has headed our investicative
task forva: on his right is Dr. William D*Aguanno from our Office
of Sciesrific Evaluation: then at the end of the table is Dr. Adrian
Gross, sho is our Assistant Director for Scientific Coordination. On
my far left, your far right, is Mr. Phithp Brodsky, who is a con-
sumer safety officer from our Philadelphia districf, who served as
the field director for the recently completed investigations at Searle.

We 2re here this morning to aiscuss the quality of animal
testing ]

Senator Kexveoy. As I understand it. vou have n more extensive
and lengthy statement.

Dr. Scuswt. Yes, sir. T have a rather detsiled and lengthy narra-
tive staterzent which I weuld like (o include for the record.

Serator Kenxeoy. It will be included in the record at the eoncln-
sion of xour testimony-.

You have another statement that is quite extensive and complete
and which I think is terribly important. There will be a few areas
where I will ask you to elaborate, but we will see if we can continue
the flow of the testimony.

Dr. Sersor. Thank yvou.

With your permission, T will supply the long statement for the
record and proceed with the shorter statement. ) ]

We are here this moring to discuss the qu ity of animal testing
being conducted on products regulated under the Federal Food. Drug




and Cosmetic Aet, and specitically. onr investigation of Searle Tabo-
ratories,
“The Federal Food. Druz. and Cosmetic \ct imposed on manufac-

PNt

treers the burden of demoastrating that their prodicts meet the
zafery requivements of the lnw, The Feod and Drug Alministration
[FDAT conduets relatively little toxicology festing of its own and
no clinieal testing. Instead. we prezeribe the tvpe and exient of test-
ing we believe necessary for a deterseination of safety and then review
the dnta submitted by mannfactirers to determine whether they meet.
theze requirements, Thus, we require that all new drues and food
additives undergo extensive testing in animals to determine the
fundamental toxicity protile of the compound, and particularly to
determine whether they have any teratogenie potential. and to deter-
mine carcinogenicity whenever there i3 the Jikelihond of chronic
exposnre of humans,

Anmmal studies of huwmnan drugs are of particular importance in
determining whether new preducis can safely be tested in humans
1o azzexs their potential therapeutic effect.

Beeausze of the importance of animal toxicology data to our deci-
sionz. it is essential that these studies be techinically complete. be con-
diered zecording to sound protoesls. and be serupulously controlled
foraquahity,

Avthe July 1001975, hearine of these subcommittees. we deseribed
the questions that had arisen recarding the inteerity of animal data
submitted to us by the (1. D. Searle Co, relating to the drugs, Flagyl
and Aldactone.

From these preliminary investizations. we concluded that an
indepeh stuely of the experimental animal operations of the Arm
wes very muech in order: and as vour will recall {rom the hearving of
July 10019750 we indieated we wonld investieate the animal studies
=nbmitted in support of Searle drugs marketed since 1963, Subse-
ety we decided to include other Searle products. including the
inve-tigational drug Norpace and the foad additive Aspartame,

To vonduct the Searle investigation efficiently and expeditiously,
an FDA tesk force was created in \ncust 1975, to review the com-
pany’s practices in conducting animal experiments, in analyzing the
data_and in submitting this information to the FDA: determine
swhether any practices of Searle in conducting ammal research are
in violation of any Iaws: and recommend appropriate corrective
action bazed upon the indings of the investigation.

The task foree promptly prepared 1 plan for the investigation.
and established investigating teams of well-qualified drug investiga-
tors and pharnacologists,

The task force then urranced for rhe review of all Searle sub-
missions of animal data since July 1, 1983, to identify the laboratory
which performed the study. its purpose. the animal spectes involved,
duration, and the route of administration of the product: estab-
hshed eniterin for selecting the products and studies to be investigated
mrensivelv: initiated an in-house review of the selected studies: on
Octoler £, 1975, initiated the onsite phase of the invcstigation, with
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teams going to Searle and Hazleton Laboratories simultaneously. The
enormous task for reviewing the intimate details, involving literally
millions of pieces of data, of the 25 selected studies continued unti]
December 18, 1975.

During this period, the investigation teams generally spent 3 out
of every 4 weeks at Searle or Hazleton, often working 18 hours a day.

I would emphasize, because I think the point will come up later,
the tremendous amount of work that has been accomplished in review-
ing these 25 studies.

At the present time, the task force, with the assistance of a grou
of pharmacologists, is still analyzing the data contained in the draft
reports. Therefure, the findings that T will describe shortly must be
considered as subject to sone modification..

In addition, the distinct possibility of legal action growing out of
this investigation requires that some of our findings be described
only in general terms.

Once the final review has been completed, any necessary followup
on the completed studies will be undertaken and the task force will
brepare a final report and recommendations. In the meantime, con-
sultation will soon begin with the Department of Justice to assure
that all relevant material is available to them when we reach final
decisions on the appropriateness of regulatory action,

Senator Kex~epy. Are You sending the material there?

Dr. Scronor. Yes, sir. We have decided, as we proceed through
the final stages of cur evaluation, that we would consult continuously
with the Justice Department, and have been in contact with them
and will continue to work with them in the evaluation of our findings.

Now, in regard to the investigation in meneral, we found, regret-
tably, that the required attention to detail in conducting these ani-
mal studies is sometimes lacking. For some time, we have been
concerned about the absence of industrywide standards, and the lack
of a systematic Federal inspection program for toxicology labora-
tories. The importance and complexity of these studies are by them-
selves sufficient reason to recommend such a program. But in addition,
thero is now growing evidence of significant quality-control problems
in these laboratories. Some of this evidence comes from our Searle
investigation.

Senator Kexneov. Do you believe there to be a general problem
throughout the industry? ] o

Dr. ScuMipr. We believe at this time, on the basis of the limited
evidence that we have from our own inspections, that there is some
degree of a generalized problem. We are not yet in a position to
describe factually and in detail the extent of an industrywide
problem. )

We believe that. certainly not. all laboratories, not all pharmaceuiti-
cal firms have had all of the problems that we found at Searle. But
we do believe that there are general and industrywide problems in
conducting, in planning and carrying out and reporting these kinds
of studies. '

One of the things that we intend to do is to systematically sample
the universe of drug firms, contract laboratories and others to deter-
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mine factually what kind of problems exist and how extensive they
are.
We intend to do this in conjunction with other Federal agencies.

Senator Kexyepy. I understand yon will make some specific recom-
mendations on this point a little later In your testimony; but as I
undecstand from this point here, vou are sufficiently concerned about
this particular issue from an industrywide position that you are
zoing to take steps to revier industrywide the animal studies which,
in this particular case with regard to Searle, you found to be so
bothersome, troublesome and distressing?

Dr. ScinoT. In general; yes.

I think that we simply do not have the resources to evaluate all
animal studies of all contract laboratories and pharmaceutical houses.
What we intend to do is to set up s2izntific and systematic sampling
of the universe of the people who do thece studies. That will tell us
whether there is a serious industrywide problem or whether the
labotatories and firms are distributed on a curve, some better than
others, which is what I would suspe«t.

Senator KexyEpY. We recognize that you cannot do all these vari-
ous drngs; but there is no reason that Fou cannot test at feast the
ones which are being used to the greatest degree.

Dr. Seupt. In selecting the drugs that we looked at in the Searle
T.ab, we set up some interesting criteria for selecting drugs to look
at which pose the most risk to individuals taking them. This is
described in my longer statement.

We would use the same kind of 2 soreening process for selecting
those drugs and those pharmaceutical hiouses for a sericus look at
their animal work.

Senator Ken~epy. But as a potential problem, yvou are sufficiently
concerned and distressed, based upon what you found in this par-
ticular investigation as well as its relationship to other submissions,
by other companies; that you believe it is of prime importance in
terms of the role of your ageucy o5 well as others?

Dr. Sciyupt. Yes, sir. Qur priorities are first to complete very
quickly the Searle investigation and then immediately to move on
to survey other firms and contract laboratories.

Qenator Javits. Mr. Chairman, would yon allow me to break ia at

this point just for a request?
T would suggest, Commissioner, that to assist our Chairman who
is so ably carrying this on as is our ranking member, Senator
Schweiker, and myself and others. that at the same time that you come
to us with your report, you request the additional resources which will
enable you to do what has to be done.

I am very alarmed by your testimony, obviously; but even more
o by the fact that on <o critical a matter, the resources of the FDA
<hould be insufficient to do what the public interest may require.

So if you would be kind enough, Commissioner, to ask us for
what you need, it would be our duty to do our best to get it in time
rather than just to have you feel Jimit=d because you do not have the
resources.
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Senator Ken~eny. Would the Senator yield?

Senator Javirs. Yes, )

Senator Kex~yepy. Maybe rather than what you say vou need, vou
would tell us what you requested from OMB. T think that might be
somewhat simpler. ‘

Senator Javirs. T would accept that very enthusiastieally.

Dr. Scinunr. T would he very happy to do that. )

Senator .Javirs. It pleases everybody.

[The information referred to follows :]

FGOD AND DRUG AOMINISTRATION ADBITIONAL BUDGET REQUEST FOR FISCAL YeAR 1577

Budgat 1377 1877 1977
appendix . requast progosed revised
page Heading peedng  amendment request
323 Seleriesand expenses. ... R23. 125,060 $15,338, 000 $219, 497, Lg

The additional amount requested will fund a comprehensive nes Food and
Drug Administration program to monitor the conduct of tests by industry to
deterrine the safely of hunan drugs and food sdditives. Recent investigationg
have revealed serious deflciencies in the testing of pew drugs and food addi-
tives. It is necessary that these deficiencies be correctedd To assure the afet-
of drugs and fond additivoes, the propaxed program swiil provide close monitoring
of preciinical and clinical testing of drugs and food additives and reevaluation
of currently used food additives.

Senator Kexxeny. As T understand, even though OMB in the last
few hours—really, the last 43 howrs or so—has indicated, at least
in_vour testimony, that those aspects where von talk about what
might be needed to accomplish this particular joh were actnally
deleted from your testimony-—

Dr. Sevisapt. As T am sire the subcommittee knows, the Adminis-
tration’s request for resources and legislative wuiliority are cleared
through OMB. That was done in this cace. What is inr the testimony
is what was cleared hy OMB.

Senator Kexxeov! Tt was done in this case. I think that both in
the course of the hearings that we are going to have today and the
remainder of the week, it will he pointed out. prob: bly as dramati-
cally as at any hearings that we have had, the importance of getting
adequate resonrces for vour department to protect the health of the
American people. And you ean tell from swhat Senator Jfavits said
this morning, and it is certaimly my own view, that we want {o make
every effort to insure that vou are going to get the resources on it.
We will get that from vou later. But we want to continue the hear-
ing now, and we want to get-specifically the reruest that was made
from OMB.

Dr. Scrsoint. Thank you. )

T the longer statement I have inclnded considerable detail regard-
ing our findings on specific products. )

At this time, T will simply highlight here some of the task force
findings on some of the products selected for review, inchiding the
drings Aldactone and Flagyvl and the food additive Aspartame.
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The investication of Aldactone consisted of a detailed review of
twn stidies, the T8-week rat earcinogenicity study discussed at the
July 1975 heavings before these subcommittees. and the 10t-week
rat earcinogenicity study condueted by Iazleton Laboratories.

On July 15, 1975, following the hearines, Searfe revealed to us
the exiztence of a pathology report on this study from Microscopy
for Diolorical Research Ttd. (MBR) which had been submitted to
Searle in Mareh 1973, but had not previeusly been disclosed to FDAL

Thiz report clearly indicated a dose-related increase in the fre-
queney of liver and testicular tumors and recommended that these
finding= be analvzed for statistical significance.

Althoagh FDA regulations require “alarming findings™ to be sub-
mitted tathe Ageney promptly. this had nor been done.

In the course of our review of the 73-week study on rats, we have
found a variety of other problems and questionable practices. For
example. tissue masses were excised from three live animals during
the studv. and the animals were allowed to continue in the study.
Two of these tumors were malignant and were not reported to FDAL

Senaror Kexvepy. [s it rot true that malignant mammary tumors
were not reported? Those were mammary tumors, as Tunderstand it,
on vour awn findings en Aldactone? As I understand, on page 4. 1t
save, ~Omizsion of maliznant mammary tamors from statistieal sum-
mary =ubmitred to FDAT

D, Semoor. That 1= correct.

In eereral, when tissues were examined by a surgical ineision or
remnved. these were palpable tumors in the stemarh of the rat.

Senaror Kexyeny. Is this not partienlarly significant with Aldac-
tone. thiz question of the mammary timors?

Dr. Semoor. Yes: it would be siemificant in any case: but it
rebares 1o the questions that had arisen abont Aldactone,

Senarar Kexseoy. And this, as T understand-—the issue about the
potential. about the danger of mammary tumors—was raised within
Searle hack in 1971 on Aldactone. in general by Dr. McConnell?
You are familiac with that memorandum where he said:

I snzzest steongly that the mammary gland receive the attention that it
has lapz descrved and now demands, in ferms of research efforts and research
dnilarz. Krowledze of the pharmacologic and toxicologic propensities of the
fermale and male breast, hoth laboratory animal and man, may well exert a
major impacr o e sale of established and new products, especially steroids.

[t gres on. “Thus, I propose that now iz an appropriate time for
devising and linplementing a prozram in comparative mammology
and chemically induced mammary lesions.”

{The memorandum referred to above follows in its entirety :]
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Shart Treatise on the Mapmzry Gland (Breast); its Importance
in Preclinfcal and Clinical ruq Safety Evaluatfons and in
Mafntafning any Given Drug on the Harket.

Or. llutting

I suggest stronaly that the marmary gland recefve the attention
that it has lora desarved and now demands, in terms of research efforts
and resecarch doldars. Knowledqge of the pharmzcologic and toxicoloaic
propensitics of the female and male breast, both laboratory animzi and
ran, pay well exert a major impact on the sale of established and new
products, especially sterofds.

Several separate problens or situations combina to emphasize the
need for prorpt attention to this area, narely:

1.

Recagniziag the very low incidence of breast neoplasns, benign
cr raliqnant, fn the humna male, it becomes quite apparent that
the detectfon of such a arowth in even one patfent in a study
group-treated with-a chemical an2nt would, epidemiological
significance notwithstanding, almost certainly be interpreted
as being chenically-induced. The detection of early neoplas-
tic and of pre-n2oplastic changes is generally related to the
extent and tha dopth of clinfcal exemination procedures em-
ployed; the more frecuent and detalled (e.q. biopsy of firm-
ness or srall noddles) the exam, the lhigher the incidence of
pre-neoslastic and early neoplastic cnange. The imniicatfon
for the Aldactone-gynecomastia problem 1s quite apparent.

The peoblen of marmmary tumorfgenesfs in dogs treated with wax
various aral contraceptive agents nceds no furtiher elaboration.

Varfous regulatory aqencies have periodically expressed the

desire for preclinical evidonce of the effect of a given )

2geat on marmary gland function: the FID is currently consfder- ‘
fng this subjedt. . Jn a2ddition to rorphologic exaninaticn oft

the sarmary qland in all toxicelogy studies, [ would anticipate

2 requirement for direct or indirect data on narmary function
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Senator Kex~eny. As T understand, back in 1971 this particular
drug wus flagged, so (o speak, about the dangers of the putential
formulation cf maminary gland tumors: that later the studies them-
selves were subniitted to vou and that two of the tumors that were
actually malignant and were mammary tumors were actually not
reported to the IFIA.

What does that sequence of events indicate to you!?

Dr. Scustier. Well, the December 16 memorandum elearly indi-
cates a proper concern for the meaning of “hreast tumors,” and par-
ticularly involves drugs which may have the side eflect of swelling
of the breast, in particular, steroidal drugs. So ¥ think the concern
of the individual writing the memorandum was quite well placed.

This, though, is set afongside a practical problem of really not
looking at the signilicance of actual tumors with enough care or
not thipking it important to report these in all instances to the Food
and Drug Administration.

Senator Kexxeov. Well, there is a little bit more of a sense of
urgency than that, is there not, Commissioner? They flagged 1t
ahout the dangers—their primary medical personnel flageed ie about
the dangers of the formulation of mammary gland tumors, and then
at the time when they did a study, the results of which they sub-
mitted to vou, tissue masses were exeized from three live animals
during the study and the animals were allowed to continue in the
stuelv. and two of the tumors were malignant.

Theze happened to be malignant mammary tumors. They were not
reportedd to the FDA. T would think that 1s rather an important
matter. Certainly it ix. I would think. from vouar own kind of evalua-
tion of the animal. Would it ot be so?

Dir. Semveont. Itis indeed iniportant,

Senator Kexxeny. Al right.

Dr. Senor. After we began our on-site investipation of the
T8-weel: rat study, the firm presented three volumes of Corrected
and Expanded Reports. The volumes were prepared by a group of
Searle ceientists to identify differences between the initial reports
submitted to the FDA and the actual rvw data, )

It is disconcerting that even today. after three separate reviews by
Searle personnel of the same data from the 78-week rat study, we
are continuing to discover errors that complicate veview of this study.

Review of a 104-week rat study on Adactone conducted at Hazle-
ton Laboratories also revealed problems. Only 70 percent of the tis-
sues scheduled for histopathological examination in the protocol were
actually examined. Tn addition. some animals with gross lesions
which. according to the study protocol. required histopathological
examination, were not so examined.

Senator Kexyeny. What is Ilazleton Laboratories?

Dr. Scinnor. My understanding is that this is a private laboratory
that does contract vesearch for a variety of contractors, including the
Government and private industry.

Senator Kexxeny. It does not do rezearch just for Searle? It does
it for a number of the companies, is that right?

Dr. Serpoor,. Yes: it does work for a number of (Government
agencies and a number of members of different kinds of industry.

H
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drug indnstey and chemieal industry and so on. Itis a member of a
Th of contract lahoratories that have sprangup around ’tl‘le coun-
cenlatory requiversents in gnod part. They are
oreamizations that perform required research

group o
try ax a result of 1
profitmaking reseaveh:
i many instances.

Senator Kexyepy. They do work

Dr. Semnor. helieve soj yes.

Senator Kexyeoy. So they do it for
including a number of the governmenta

Dr. S¢inuoT. Yes, sir.

Senator Kexveoy, All right.

De. Seinupr. Moving then to the drag Flagyl

The investigation of Flagyl inelnded detailed review of the 80-week
rat carcinogenicity study discnssed at the Jmy hearings ard five
tu-l s dealing with the effects of the drug on reprorduction and fetal

velopment. '

The investigaiion has diselosed that reports on tumors in the ani-
mals of this ctudy were submitted to FDA in 1969, 1970, 1974, and
1975, Prior to 1973, cach of these reports diff~red from the others in
the number of tumors reported.

Zenator Kexyenv. What is the significance of this?

Le. Sciror, Well, the significance is that one does not. really know
how many tumors to include inthe caleulations of the study results:
ol it indicates some problems, obviously, in recordkeeping and
calenlation.

Generally, diffienliies in correcting things adequately means inade-
quacies in the raw data that one turns hack to for answers.

I think one of the problems we have had s reconstructing what
really happened from the raw data cheets which, in many instances,
are either madeguate or inaccurate as found by talking to the people
who reeorded the ohzervations in the first place.

Senator Kessroy, Well, T suppose the matter which is most
hothersome and distressing is that yvou are getiing comflicting con-
clusions in terms of the statistieal etudies. That has to be a matter
) of very major importance and signifieance, 3s it not? Do you not

] conzider ‘hat to be the case!?

Dr. Senaror. [ wonid certainly agree: ves, sir.

Senator Key~epy. That is really what we are talking about in this
case here: am T correet ?

Dr. Sepsaor. Yes, Perhaps Dr. Gross, or others, conld comment
on thic. In come instances we were not able reliably to reconstruct the
actual nwnbers to be derived from experiments. This, of couvse,
renders at the very teast the value of the study much, mueh less than
it ongrht to be.

Among additional major findings of the investigation of this study
are: (1) For several of the animals, it was noted that the microscopic

. oxamination of tissue slides had been conducted by two different
pathologists at Searle who reported different findings. Rather than
submitting both reports. or having a third pathologist review slides
on which the first twe disagreed. Searle submitted only the second
pathelogizt’s report, which in our view appears substantially more
favorable to the dme: and (2} Seacle employees were unable to

for the Cancer Institute as well?

« number of the companies,
| agencies, is that correct?

Ti-144 00 - T8 -2
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explain many of the procedures by which microscopic findings were
recorded, edited and verified prior to the inclusion in the report of
this study; most records of observations of microscopic findings were
not dated or signed. They were also unable to account for the dif-
ferznces in raw data and the final reports submitted to ¥FDA.,

Senator Kex~Neoy. You mean final reports did not reflect the raw
data?

Dr. Sciemwr. In some instances this is trie; and of course we tried
then to discover the reason for the discrepancy between summary
resuits that were submitted to us and the raw data.

In some instances we were able to discover the error mace and in
other instances these discrepancies remain a mivstery.

Significant problems were also encountered during the review of
five reproduction and teratology studies of Flagyl.

For only one of the studies could a protocol be found, and the study,
as conducted, showed significant deviations from the protocol.

Calculations made by the investigation team indicate that the ani-
mals received a lower dose than reported. which could convey a mis-
leading favorable impression of the toxic potential of the drug.

It was impossibie in some cases to be certain animals had received
the amount of drug intended. Animals were dropped from one study
without explapation, mating observations unrecorded, and autopsy
records not maintained. » )

Senator Kexxeny. All of this is really another mistake, I imagine,
in favor of the company and approval of the drug?

Dr. Scuyipt, In a number of instances, we believe that mistakes
made favored the drug, and in one or two it did not. And some we
are unable at this point to say.

Senator Kex~evy. Yes; but most of the mistakes. as T understand.
from the review of your testitmony, were made in favor of the drug?

Dr. Sciyunt. In some instances this is true: ves.

Senator Kexxepy. Is it? Just ir some instances? Did you reach
any conclusion whether mere were made that would actually favor the
drug?

Dr. Scitastwr. I can only answer this at this time—-—

Dr. Gross, could you answer? .

Dr. Gross. We have not made an exhaustive balancing of what mis-
takes there were. As the Commissioner reported. mistakes were made
in both directions; but we have not reached a complete cudit.

In the case of the two pathologists looking at the same slide, it 1s
true, as the Commissioner stated a minute ago, that the report sub-
mitted to us would seem to be more favorable in general to the drug.

Senator Kexnepy. Well, the answer x was looking for, as I under-
stand it, page 11, point No. 3, you say: ) )

“Many decisions made in the course of c2signing, conducting and
reporting studies tended to minimize the chances of discovering tox-
icity and to allay possible SBA concern.”

This is your conclusion?

Dr. Scryior. That is correct. And in this instance, I would be
terribly upset with the mistake favoring the drug; but T am mainly
upset by the simple finding of all of ¢ ~se errors and improper prac-
tices; and that really is a significant enough finding.
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Movinz then to the food additive. the sweetener Aspartame. More
than 180 studies were submitted by Searle in support af the food
additive petition for Aspa tame. a sreetening ingrediant. Of these,
11 were solected for review. Again, I will summarize some of our
findings.

In 2 115-weck rat study. we noted numerous problems, including
rear metaods of distribution and identification of control and treated
: Is. poor records of weighings, and no assays of homogeneity of
the product with the diet.

Approximately 90 of the 196 arimals that died during the study
were fixed in totn and necropsied at some later date: in some cases
more than 1 year later.

Reconds indicated that a high-dose female found dead during the
experimant contained a tissue mass. The submission to the FDA\ re-
ported no such tissue mass, and the animal was excluded from the
study due to macked autolysis.

Ricords of a number of animals disclosed significant discrepancies

ween recorded gross observations and the individual pathology

B mraries submitted to the FDA. In other instances of questionable

r:iees. tissue maszses were visualized through skin incisicns—a
chlyv unusuay jprastice _

\= I mentinned before, these were principally bresst masses that
wers examined. .

Reviewr of five reproduction and teratology studies for Aspartame
revealed poor animal hushandry practices and problems in the design
of 2ine of the studices. [ will not go into the details of this, but I
wrund simply observe that a consultent in a letter to Searle ques-
jrnrod the shaky fonndation laid by the studies.
orator Kevyeoy. As I understand-—this is very brizf, and we will
inrlude it all in the record—is a brief comment :

ve soien to Dr. Palmer on this study. Tt is review of study of lengthy

- He will airmail firther copy to McConpell Immedistely. Overall com-
: is as f~llows - He wruld not take much nocdice of very meny of the studles
of bad experimertal design. animal hushandry apd siztiztical analysis.
only usrfol stndy was the first dietary stods which demonstrated
that it is impraciicel to administer APM in the diet.

This is. 1= T unaderstand it, the consultant that was hired by Searle

0 rev .he work. the quality of the work: and that is his conclu-
sion as commented on by the Searle representative.

Is that basically wnat vou understand to be the case

Dr. Semyipr. Yes. sir.

‘I his was followed up by more lengthy evaluation that did arrive,
that we then turned up in the investigation, which in essence, confirms
the initial report.

One final example with regard to Aspartame: Our investigzators
fourd that a pathologist’s sumimary was cdited in such a manner as
to alter. zenerally in a favorable direction. some of the pathologist’s
summarized findings. The original report was not submitted.

Senator Kexxroy. Just before we po on, obviously we have been
reviewing the sclentific data that has been develeped and submitted
and in many instanees, at least in =ome instances, as Your own testi-
mony poinis out, urnreported, misreported. altered or changed. As I
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understand, then in addition to types of scientific data that were
submitted, there was apparently an additional strategy by the com-
pany. I would bz interested in whether vou run into this kind of a
problem in terms of this company or other companies. In connection
with Aspartame, 2 memerandum that was apparently sent to the top
members of the company who were working on this drug.

I will include the whole document in its entirely in the record. But
it says in one paragraph:

At this meeting, the basic phkilr=ophy of our approach to food and drugs
should be tn try to get them to say “Yes,” to rank the things that we are going
to ask for so w2 are putting first those questions we would like to get a “ses” to,
even if we bave to throw some in that have no significance to us, other than
putting them in a yes saying habit.

We must create afirmative atmosphere in our dealing with them. It would
help if we can get thern or get their people involved to do us any such favors.
This would also help bring them into subconscious spirit of participation.

And it mentions two of the officials,
[The letter and memorandum referred to follow :]
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in dry fors end that thoy Lo P expozurz s i
uhicu is thz porc2l condaing Tovel in iy sueet
at tnis tiec raise the questicn of resiriciions on & -
eacentiol aming seids. but T ousuld b jroarcd tooospond i criisia i
it oat Lhis tiwn S ocvecinly roise it hiore !
out. Cuue we'v 1 vonld went tooest-Llizh
Lthe Yoevel of ool 5 it's ha"*llj connacea irciuding
and vith the tosicity date thet we heve in dhe fecding swdits,
czpoct Lo gt ag,"vJI, antt on tnc hazis of the Jata oa huni. at -
hav“ to be prepared with the averaqe intakos of Lie suaetener tact miait
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T understand that the real question in terms of trying to make
judgments on these matters supposedly would be based on scientific
data and only scientific data, not just a general kind of willingness
to get into a subconscious spirit of saying yes.

Do you find these efforts by the company to be effective? Are there
similar efforts made by other companies to your knowledge?

Dr. Scrorior. I was interested by the discovery of this memoran-
dum. In a sense, I was not surpriszd.

Senator Kes~eoy. What do you mean by “not surprised’?

Dr. Scisopr. Well, T have observed over the years that in many
pharmaceutical houses that there 1s a conflict between the scientific
side of the house, if you like, and the marketing side of the house.
A pharmaceutical firm iy, after all, an interesting mix of legal people,
marketing people, advertising people and scientific people. They are
often contesting approaches and other ideas within the organization.—
And at times the scientists hold forth and at other times advertising
people or marketing people hold sway. This impdcts heavily at times
on what a pharmaceutical house does.

This memorandum to me is rather a misguided attempt, I sup-
pose, at planning. I would not be surprised if there was a similar
memorandum about coming here before this subcommittee.

I would guess there are a lot of meetings going on in companies
planning how thev are going to deal with the FDA, how they can
persuade the FD.\, and how their views can carry the day at FDA.

I think there are a bunch of hardnosed people in FDA, and I have
not observed anvbody with the habit of shaking his head up and down
like this [indicating].

In a sense, this 15 a silly memorandum. T would be embarrassed
by 1t.

"Senator Kexxeoy. Well, it may be a silly memorandum, but I
suppose the real issue is the effect that any of these techniques have
on the FDA. Evidently they believe ‘that it does have some mmpact
or some positive etfect on it. To the exter.t that it does or does not
I think is a matter of concern, I suppose particularly when we are
considering the kinds of scientific data which has been found wanting
and lacking in this rase.

Dr. Scutior. Yes.

Senator Kexseoy. Furthermore, one document that was submitted
with regard to various animals—and I have the list of the various
animals that were included in a variety of different tests, there were
about 24 or 25 of them-—on this particular list. of the 24 or 25 animals,
a number of them are each considered to be alive and then dead, and
then alive and then dead again. for the purposes of reporting.

One here, the number is A15MM. It saye. “Found dead March 13,
1971; alive April 3, 1971; dead June 1, 1971; alive August 23, 1971;
Adead Seplember 20, 19717

Now, this is not just. one animal; this is repeated in others. Srme
have vanished. Some were alive, such as KISLF—“Alive April 22,
19711 vanished on May 20, 1971: and alive June 17, 1971°"; and then
he is vanished again on July 15, 1671,

[Thelist referred to follows:]
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J24HY

¥18Lr

*M25CF

H28M4F

*ULSCE

G 2iiM

Al5MM4

Gl

A €M

G234

ol v tree ani N
Found dead 3/21/71
Alive 5/19/71
Dead 5/16/71
Alive 7/14/71
Gead 8/11/71
Alive 4f22/71
vanished (deat ?) $/20/71
Altve 6/37/71
vanished (dead 1) 7/15/71
Found dead 3/ /7%
Alfve 6/18/71
vead 1/16/71
Alive 9/10/71
Alive 10/ 8/71
Dead 11/ s/71
Alive 7/13/71
vanished (dead 7) §&/10/71
Alive 1/13/71
vanlshed (dead ?) &/10/71
Found dead 3/10/71
Alive 8/ 9/71L
teound dead 3/13/71
Alive 5/.3/71
[wad 6/ 1/71
Alive 8/23/71
bead 9/20/71
Fouad dead 3/ 9/71
Alive 8/ 9/71
Dead 9/ 7/7%
Found dead 2/25/71
Alive s/ 3/71
Dead 6/ /7t
Alilve 8/23/71
Cead 9/20/71
Found dead 3/ 7/71
Alive 8/ §/71
Dead N 9/ 7711
Found dead 1/21/72
tlive 2/25772
Found dead 9/ 3/7i
Alive 11/29/71

Lead 12/27/71

Blay

B12HF

L30LY

*BLISCF

Clzee

Alive

vanished (d2ad 1)
Alive
vanished (dead 1)
Alive
wanished (dead 7)
Llive (7)

Found dead
Alive
Deat”
Alive
Dead
Alive

vilied
Alive
D2ad
Alive (7

Found lead

Alive ()

“ound dead
Fcund dead

ai dead

Found dead

iy s vairiety sf Lifferent Tests

——

6/29/71
7/27/71
8/24/71
9/21/71
10/19/71
11/16/71
2/22/72

2/25/71
8/246/71
9/2t/71
16/19/71
11/16/71
2/22]72

7/30/71
10/19/71
11/16/71

2/22/72

9/ 2/7.
10/19/71
11/16/71

2/22/72

9/12/71
10/157/71L"
11/16/71

2/22/72

1/22/72
2/22/72

1/25/72
2/22/72

3/29/71
6/ 2/71
6/30/71

8/10/71
10/20/71
1L/17/71
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Senator Bearr. How does an animal vanish?

Senator Kennepy. That is what I am trying to find out. Reincar-
nativn—the secret has been found.

In a serious manner, what is this? What does this mean to you?

These are animals that are involved in different tests and studies
on different tests. What is the significance of this kind of record-
keeping which are supplied to the FDA ?

Dr. Scusr. The most reasonable explanation fer this sort of find-
ing is inadequate observation of animals in cages, perhaps inadequate
marking of cages; but certsinly a lax system of knowing the con-
dition of each animal every day and reporting accurately that con-
dition, and then carrying those figures through to the summary
tables.

Senator Kexxenv. If you cannot get a person to tell whether the
animal is dead or alive, what kind of valie are you going to give to
their analysis about whether it is a cancer-causing agent?

Dr. Scusmwr. Generally, people can tell the difference if they look.
The problem is often in not looking and knowing. This then results
in animals that might Le long dead, lIying in the cage, and the subse-
quent problem of autolysis; that is, degeneration of tissues, so one
cannot tell what he is looking at under a microscope.

Cleerly, the meaning of this again is that one cannot rely as much
as he would like, and in some instances rot at all, on the results of
the study.

We consider this, wherever it occurs, at Searle or in our own
laboratories, which has happened veeasienally, to be a serious, totally
unacceptable practice.

Senator Bearr. Mr. Chairman, on that point it really hac to be
probably the result of inexperienced people observing these things:
does it not? T just cannot believe that anybody who knows what they
are doing cannot determine from day to day whether an animal is
dead or alive. There must be some pretty easy test

Dr. Scasior. Having run laboratories myself, I can tell you that
there are many problems. Most commonly, what happens is that the
people one hires for animal keeping, or similar jobs, have little or
no training. If little or no training is given to them, they do not
understand what they are doing or what the significance Is. )

If there is no quality control operation in the laboratory to train
the people and to see that they are doing what they are supposed to:
be doing, then one finds these kinds of circumstances that are really
impossible to understand and explain. It just comes from a lack of
running a proper laboratory.
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Conator Brarr. WWell. a laboratory that swoulit show thesa xinds of

meenits apparently would have no supervision whatsoever, woutd ir?
Dir. Senstior. 1f vou look again, you will find sometimes longer

prrindds of time go by, Suppezing a study s going on and on Mornday -

zammebody records that the animal is dead and tlien that record sheet
is taken away. Then on the next day, some other person comes and
raakes another observation, and this particnlar animal 15 reporiad on
the record sheet as alive. These sheets could be accnmulated for weeks
or monthe. be set aside for a year and then one goes and lonkz at the
raw duta and savs, “Geod God. I eannot make anv senze out of this.”
nd then if he feels for whatever reasons he has to make soms snse
of it. then one gets summary sheets and s on that 45 nnt jite with
the raw data.

The error in the first place is in the observation of the animals and
the construet of the raw data sheets, This is a very important point.
I think, with regard to what ore can or should do about the problem
in correcting it. It says one must get at the obhzervations and ko= they
are made in the first instance.

Zenator Bravr. It is infercsting to note that one cf these sheets,
BLME. it eavs it was killed on July 30,1971, and alive nn Ocinber
19, 107 1—apparent]y it was not an effective hit job.

Zonator Kesseoy, De. Schmidt, we have just been talking zbout
e of the drugs here, and T think for the purposes of onr under-
tanding of the problem, we should realize thet it wa just o0 the
Dpnes that van have mentioned. but o other An

that vou have rearhed on that.

The cancluzions
v e—nq Point Noo bl brsavs:

Toaones penorted to be examined o not eorresy
ch dese and contraly ctated eic

X despinal enmid TR

£ s pach—aetunils zern ont of eight examined Mid.dose brai

oot eiyht examined —actiually zero ont of eight exarmins~d. T
sro omid- and zh) eight out of eight reported examined ot

oLt examined.
["The memorandnm referred o follows in its entirety
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Status of Searle Ivasti gation

Completed Investigations - The investigations on 10 individpal

studies involving 7 diiferent producis have been cémpleted by the

fnvestigating teams. Four firal reports have been submitted to the

Task Force. Three of the remalning six reports will be completed

by December 10, 1975 and thice by December 19, 1975 {Sce Appendix 1.

Qr.golng Investigations at Scarle — There are clx» ongoing Investigations

irvolv ng five different products. Anticipated date of completion
fncluding submission of finished report is December 19, 1375,

(See Appendix 1).

Follow-up Investigations - A review of the final repoits by the Lead

Investigator and the Task Force may indicate the need for further

follow-up at Searle, Hazleton, to ox-employees, etc. Currently,

an investigation is scheduled at Microscopy for Biological Research,

1td., (Mauro), Albany, Wew York, for the woek of December 8, 1875,

as a follow-up to the 78-vicek rat study on Aldactone dong at Szarls,
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Changes in Investigational Plans

The followlng substitutions have been made In stuus s to be

{nvestigated:
Orlginal ) Substitution Reason_
SC 16895 N Norpace 5C 16895 was
(IND 5963) 40-week rat : snbject of a
~26-weck dog study discontinued
at Searle IND {5953).
' After {hiding
problems with
the dog study on
Norpace, an octive
IND, we decided
to use our limited
[e3curces on the
active drug.
Silandrone Syacro-Mate The Silandrune
Dog study, 13-week dog study study was reported
Hazleton Labs 13-veek rat study to the Task Force as

Searle Labs done at Searle lLabs
and was so scheduled,
but turned out to have
becn done at Hazleton.
We chose Syncro-Matz
because it was dene at
Searle by the same
team that did original
£0-week Flagyl study
(McConnell, Martinez,
and Sagartz).
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Aspartame Pivotal Studies

Acting on a request from the Bureau of Foods (Sec Appandix 2)
we placed the identified pivotal Aspartzre studies undar seal.
This action was taken on Decembper 3, 1375, within hours after

the order was sfgned staying the approval of the {fond additive.

(See Appendix 3 for Ust of studles under seal).

Conference between Task Force and Invesiligating Teams

2 conforence vwas held between tha Task Force and th2 Investigating

Teams on November 24 and 25, 1975. A summary of the more
slgnificant findings reported by the tears on gach study Is

attached (See Appendix 4).




STATUS OF INDIVIDUAL INVESTIGATIONS

PRODUCT

STUDY

FIRM.

DATE REPORT
COMPLETED OR DUT

I. Investigations
Tompleted with
written reports

‘Aldactene

Aspartame
Norpace

Cu7

104 week rat study
104week rat study
52 week dog study
52 week rat study

Hazleton
Hazleton
Searle
Searle

December 3, 1975
December 3, 1975
December §, 1975
December 5, 1975

1I. Investigations
compieted ~ Reports
belng written

Aldactone
Flagyl
Aspartame

78 week rat study
Reproduction studies
$2 week monkey study
52 week dog study

46 week hamster study
114 week rat study

Searle
Searle
Searle
Searle
Searle
Scarle

Deccember 10, 1975
Deccember 10, 1975
December 19, 1975
December 19, 1973
December 19, 1975
December 19, 1975

HI. Investigations
orgoing

Flagyl
Norpace
Aspartame
Ovulen
Syncro~-Mate

80 weck rat study

40 weck rat study
Reproduction and teratology
7 year dog study

13 week dog study

13 week rat study

Searle
Seasle
Searle
Searle
Searie
Searle

December 19, 1975
December 19, 1975
December 19, 1975
December 18, 1875
December 18, 1975
December 15, 1975

] x1puoddy
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VEMORANDUM

s

I Czriton Shirp, KrD-330
Tram Leadex
arl

G. D. Sz

Fao- : Acting Director
Foerezu ¢f Foods, HFF-1

Appendix 2

DEPARTLIENT OF HEALTH, LDUCATION, AND WELTARL

FORPLIZ HEALTIL SLUVICE
FOOD AND DRUC ADMINISTRATION

DATE: Decerder 2, 1575

~ & Co. Investigaticn Teaa

The following studles are considered by our scieatfsts to have beea pivotzl

{n the safety review of Aspartaze (FA? 3A2889).

Entry ¥p. (FAME 134)

¥-77 & F-78

T21-.%84 O -6 -2

Tirle

Two Generation Reproduction Study
in Rats of SC-18862 (hspartame)
PT 657771

106-Week Ural Toxicity Dog Stuly
PT 855570 (of SC-18S52 Aspartaze)

siciry Suudy fn the

$T 8562170 {of SC-1EB62

52-Yeak

Tafant Yor

Aspartare)

Tro-Year Toxleity Stuly in the Pat
TT82E17L (of SC-188%2 Aspartase)

Lifetire Toxizity Stuly fn the Rat
PT £97472 (of SC-183C2 Aspartame)

104 -Veek Tozicity Study in the Movuse
(of SC-1B862 Aspayteme

110-Week Tericlty Study in the Housz
PT Y35H-73 (of SC-1%3192 Diketopipera-
zine}

115-VWeek Cral Tumorigenicity Study in
the Pat PT $23573 (of SC-19192 Dikete~
plperazine)
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-2 -

E-86 A suppleoental Study of Dog Brains
from a 106-Veek Oral Toxicity Study
(PT 855570) PT Ka. 1226 (cross-ref.
E-28) (of SC-18862 Aspartawme)

E-87 A supplemental Study of Rat Brains froa
Tvo Tuzorigenfcity Studies (PT B838H71 &
892H72) (crcss-ref. EJ4 & E70) (of
SC-18862 Aspartame)

Other Studfes of Interest re: Aspartame Petition

Eutxy No. (FAMF 134) Title

A E-27 46-Week Oral Heastecs Study PT 852572
& E-35 (supplement) ) (of SC-18862 Aspartame)
& E-36 (supplement)
h

B. Any one or two of = aumber of teratogenic/reproductive/Embryotosic
Potential Studies

Most receutly subaftted 1s E-89 & E-90.

E-39 An Evaluaticn of Enbryotexic and
Teretogenic Potentilal in the Housa
PT 1218 (of SC~1BB62 Aspartame)

E-90 An Evaluatfon of Embryotoxfc and
Teratcgenic Potentfal in the Rabbdbit
"PT 1201 (of SC-18862 Aspartame)

C. Any one or tvo or & nurber of acute and short term oral tox{city studies
of SC 18862 (Aspartaze) or SC 19192 (Diketopiperazine)

Ve would appreclate the fnvestigation tzams' efforts in taking whatever steps
are necessary to place 211 of the original fnformation contained in these
files under ¥FDA control. -As soon as this is completed, we will proceed to
take vhataver steps 2re necessary to determine the sccuracy of the data
subzitted in the susrmaries which were revieved by our sclentists.

Houard R. Roberts, Ph.D.




SPLETAME UNDER SEAL

ion Study in Fats of

T ESG7 H 71

Stuiy in the Pat of SC-18862
3. IS{ztime Tovlcity Study in the Rat PT 692 H 72
(of SC-12352 Aspartame)

oxizity Study in the Mouse PT 984 H 73

No-wzsk Toxdzity Stady (n the Mouse FT 985 H 73
Letorlnerazina)
t2l Study of Dat Bralns fizm Two
s (PT 823 H 71end 362 H 72)
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3. 115-week Oral Tumorigenlcity Study in the Rat
(of SC-13192 Diketopiperazine) PT 982 S 73

4. Acute Toxlcity Studies in the Rat, Mous2, and
Rabbit {of ST 19192)

5. Acute Toxlcity Studies in the Rat, lfouse, and
Rabbit of SC 188¢C2

6. A Supplemental Study of Dog Brains from a 106-week
Oral Toxicity Study (PT 655 S 70) PT. No. 1226 (of
SC 18862 Aspartame}

7. 46-week Oral Hamster Study (of SC 1£362 Aspartame)
PT 852 S 72

8. &n Evaluction of Embryotoxic and Teratogenlc
rotential In the Mouse (of SC 13862 Aspartame)
PT 1218

9. An Eveluation of Embrystoxic ans

Potent!al in the Rebbit {of $C 16862 hepartome) PT 1201

o
g
N
>4
o
o
Q
W)

~

[y

16. Two Week Oral Toxicity Study in the Mouse
PT 885 S 70

11, Two Week Oral Toxicity Study {n the Fet
Pt 884 S 70

e

12. Five Weex Oral Toxicity Study In the Rzt
PT 972 S 71
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B.  Only 70% of the tissues prnjected for histolr)f]icil

examinstion were actually examlned, thereby reducing

value of test In determining tumorigenlcity.

C. Histopathology report contains findings on many slldes

which according to lahoratory’'s cwn records, were aot

rade.

IS

Aspaitamec - Searle laboratories

A. 52 VWeek Monkey Study

1.

False statemerts in submission <ancerning evellabilicy

of animals for necropsy. -

Searie memo Indicates "unexpected [indings" and eye

ch'ahges, but no mentian of these In submission.

BE. Il4 Weck DNat Study - DKP

1.

50% of the aninials were fixed in toto. Report to FDA
Indicates prompt necropsy when in some cases [t was

more than ¢ year from Cate of death.

Exclsion of tissue mass in high dose fewale. Also

skin incision over mans made in two (2) treated animals.
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Chanjgcs in Gross necropsy reports made by pathologist

vhn was not present at necropsy.
P

C. 52 Weak Dog Study

. Report to FDA states all animals nearty - no disecases,

but at least one anfmal was sick and treated during the-

study.

D. 46 VWeek Hamster Study

B

2nimals fixed In teto - some not necrepsied for a

y2er or more.

Seudy discontinued because of "wet tail”, (a disease
~f hamsters) but none of the symptoms of the disease

are reflecied in daily observation records.

Lt least fn BUN s and Final Eody Weights the flrm

could not contirm the means in the submlssion from

thelr own raw data.

hsporteme - 104 weel Dat Stedy - Hazlaton Laboratarsies

A. Autolyzed tissues,

denominatar of tissves examined for a calculation of the

percent of toxic lestons present.

with no obscrvations, aic inzluded in the
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B. Mt least four Instarces were roted where animals have
vnusual or usual lesions, but no slide was made. This

{5 not in accordance with tie proiacol,

C. Editing of Fathologist's Summary {not submittad to FDA)
for final report which alters some of the pathologist's

summarized firdings.

D. Tumors reported for 3 and possibly § treated animals for

whick no slides were found and no block cut.

E. Positive findings report by zath

which no slides were ever maZe.

Aspartame Reproduction and Teratolosy Studies — Scarle Labs.

Investigation of thesc studies has just begun. A document
found by tr‘.c fnvestigating teams contains a statement by one
of Searle's own consultarts that, “He would not take much
notice of very many of the studies becausc of bad experimental
design, anlmal husbardry, and statistical analysis. He feels
that the only usecfui study was the first dictory study vwhich

dzmonstrates impracticzble to adiminisior APM In the dlet”.




Flag

A.

80 Vseek Fat Study - Saarle lLaborainries

Peproduction Stulies - 3

1.

Reports subin: 1o to FDA tn 1269, 1570, ’]974, and

1975. FEach contain verlctions en the nuinbar and/or

The annotated verslon sub-

mittad tn 1975 shows hundreds of comreciions of the

1974 corrected version.

Gross nacropsy recoids aliered by a pathologist who

was not presest whan gI0ss RCCrIDsy was per{formed.
Pathology on at l2ast 2 groups of animals (13 end 26
veeck sacriflce) was parformed by two separate

patholaglsts (McConnell ard Szgariz) but only

Sagartz's report vas submiited to FDAL

Rzt - 2 Rabhit - Sgarle Labs.

In one rabbit study, protocol called for 2% and 5%
suspension, but 2% and 10%, were reported to FDA,

and 2% and 5% were ectually given. |

rting studics to FDA, 4 years inone

Delay In rey

case and 6 years in anothev.
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3. Questionable qualificatlons of sentor investligator.,

Norpa

&
9]
1

A. 52 Week Dog Study - Searle La_.baratorics

L. Study submitted twice; once as pait of an IND and
later 55 part of NDA. NDA version shows numerous

corrections of clerical (seemingly) errars In data.

2. FDA reguests readings of low and inid-dose brains

becausc of findings In high dose. Conclusion was

reached that no changes observed In these groups,
but this concluslon was hased on a partial evaluation
of only 3 of 16 bralns and all 16 had artifects on

sifdes.

3. Drastic drop In blood levels of drug at week 40.

Firm's records not adequate to determine whether or

not the anlmals got the drug.

4. Tissues reporied to be examined do not ccn‘csrronq
wlith actual data: e.¢. spinal cord (high dose and
control) stoted B8/8 erzmnined for cach -— actually

0/8 cxamired. Mid-dose bralns reported 8/3 examined




Cu7

$52

39

-~ acteally 0/8 examined. Parathyioid {Continl, m

and kigh) 8/8 reported examined -~ actual 0/8.
A0 VWeek Hot Study - Searle Laboratories
In proygress, no report.
Week Rat Study - Searle Laboratories

Inadequate ante -mortem observatlons: e¢.g. animals
reported in good conditlon viere actually dzad, inadeguate

reporting of tissue masses.

Urnreliahle gross post-mortem observotions on vterine
polyps and lissue masses: e.g. polyp In stde but not

reported on gross.

Submissfon to FDA misleacding In that implies that 1UD
(copper and plastic) was Implanted but; in fact, there
werc three separate groups - sham operated, plastic,

and copper. Reviewer hos slnce becn tabied to and he

ascuined copper group had completc'IUD implanted.

Lack of prafessional supervision of proscctors. finemo
of 10,/31/71 from McConncll requested doting, Initisling,

and prosircading of the suamary of ante-moriem whservations
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but this was nzt [oliowed.

Ovulen - 7 Year Dog Study ~ Seerle Labs.

A. Original batchas of tablets used during entire duration of

7 yecar study.

B. 6th year interim report states that certain palpable mammary

masses were transient. Rawv data showed masses continucus

throughout this pericd of the report.

C. Erovid and Ovulen Dog Studies donae {1 the same rsom at

the same time.

Problems Common to Many Studics

1.  Failure to asszay product for polency or product-feed combination

for hormogeniety and stability.

2. No general program to determine absorption of chemical during

study.

3.  Anta-ortem ebservalions are of guestionable reliahility.

4. Supervision and revicw of anie-mortem ohecrvations virtaally

non-cxistent.
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toechniclans.

Gereral lack of knowledue of and contiol over status of a
product by Scarle porsonnel. Inability to verify or validate
data in varlous phases of study [idm obzervation notes to

subm!ssicns.

Apparent lzck of firm direction, at the corporzte ‘evel, of the
Patholoyy-Toxlcology Department and Regulatory Affalrs Staff,

'
te assure the credibility of studies and submissions to TDA.
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Dr. Scasaot. Perhaps T could ask Dr. Gross to comment.

Qenator Kexxepy. Well, just the fact that thes have not bezn ex-
amined, is the principal point I was trying to ring here, not the
details: and as 1 understand, that 1s part of your conclusions; is that
correct!

Dr. Scaumwot. Yes, sir

I think that we found deficiencies and errors essentially in 2l of
the 25 studies. What I have obviously attempied to do 1s illusirate
some of them and to categorize some of them, zs I mention later on

Jate
in the statement.

There were some common findings in the variozs studies.

Serator Kex~epy. That is right.

We will sbviously inciude this document in the record, but later it
ssys—and these are overall conclusions for the drmgs—

Beceuse of the perfunctory nature of the observatizoy tlssue masses coe
and go and acnircals dle more than once. Necropsy rej<rts submitted to FDA
are frequezily at variance with raw data. Urerplaized alterations made by
unidentifed perwons in both antemortem and postiyrtem records. Apperent
la-k of firm direction at tie corporate level of the pathology-toxicclogy de-
partment and Regulatory Affairs etaff to lnsure the credibility of stmdizs ard
gubmiszions w0 the FDA.

These were general conclusions, as I understani, made with regard
to the drugs that you reviewed.

OK. We =ill move ahead.

Dr. Scayior. Perhaps I could move 2o the top of page 11 sincz 1
have been distussing in general these findings. and in all of the studies
there were kinds of problems that can be charactzrized as I just did.

We have tried to step barck from several sp : deficienciez our in-
vestigators found to analyze the problems common to mans of th
studies reviewed at Searle, which were conductsi from 1967 o 1875,
These problems may b categorized as follows:

One: Technical personnel at Seavle seem to lz2-% an understanding
of a number of aspects of their work;

Two: There appeared to be a lack of adeguare control by Searle
management over numerous aspects of the performance and ansuiysis
of animal sxdies; and

Three : Manv decisions made in the course of designing, condncting,
and reporiing studies tended to mirimize the chances of discovering
toxicity and to allay possible FDA concern. I have illustrated, with
numerous examples, these three categories of problems in my full
statement for the record.

Senator Kexxeny. Refore we leave that, talking about point No. 2,
in listening to vour statement, sse are telking atoat not only manage-
ment mistakes. but about scientific mistakes: are we not#

Dr. Scerztr. Yes; very much so.

Senator Kex~eny. That is of a major kind of importance. Other
than just judgmental factors, different kinds uf -onclusiorz, we are
talking about basic and fundamental mistakes ir terms of 2cientific
aspects of review?

Dr. Scowmwr. Very much so. These really run the gamnat of re-
search work, from choosing and purchasing en’mals, through the de-

i

o
1
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sign of a protocol, to the actual conduct of the study and the gather-
ing and calculations of the data.

At each step, deficiencies have been found. I will judge scientifically
that a'majority of these were errors of omission in that there was a
fajlure to do some good practice. And again I would tend to turn to
the kinds of good practices that should be in these laboratories.

Senator Kexseny. Mr. Commissioner, these points are important,
but I think what is most important is the conclusions that you are
going to draw from this report; what the implications are in terms
of the safety and security of the American people, and what sperific-
allv the FDA is going to do about it, what you are going to do in
termns of working with other agencies, that may very well have simi-
lar kirds of programs,

What we vre very interested in is what any of us can do about it
in terms of aay kind of additional legislative authority or resources
or whatever ‘o try and provide some protection and permit you to
do the job. T think after going over some of these matters this morning,
anytedy who has been listening or watching this exchange wants to
know exactly what the nature of the real kind of threat is, what all
of this means in terms of their own kind of safety and security, in
termns of the general kind of work with the FID.A. what vou are going
to do about it and what any of us can do, particularly here in the
Congress, on it. : .

I think that would be a most importart sort of summation, and
we ran put the rest of this in the record. )

Dr. Scinoot. There are two principal questions. T think. to be ad-
dressed. You have already asked one: Are the problems found at
Searle unique or industrywide? And. second, what do these findings
Lave to sav about the safety of our foods and drugs?

I have spoken to the first question. We are not now ahle to answer
the first qaestion definitely.

Senator Kex~epy. But vou are going to take the steps to answer
that? )

Dr. Scisnor. T think we must assume. on the basis of the evidence
the Ageney has, that there is to some degree an industrywide prob-
lemn. We are going to find out the extent and kind of problem that
exists. :

TWe have considered the second question—what does this mean in
regard to the safety of the products on the market—very carefully
during the last 6 months and in preparing for this hearing.

We believe that it clearly would not be responsible at this time to
‘ndict all past animal toxicology work because of what swe have
learned so far. or to single out particular drugs or feod additives for
special concern. ] .

I would like to take just a moment to explain what may seem to be
a somewhat more paradoxical reassurance. The scientific evaluation
of drugs and food additives in this country invelves a number of re-
dundancies, checks and balances, safegnards. and fail-safe approaches.
A1l of these serve to prevent a compound from being approved until
it has been examined extensively and repeatedly by different ob-
cervers. often in different laboratories. in multiple species, and against
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a general background of scientifie knowledge in pharmacology, toxi-
mlmr\ anrd ({rug imetaboiism.

This reassurance is based on the following considerations:

Firet of all, o regulations require that all animal studies con-
durted by drug sponsors be submitted for evaluation and that all
studies containing “alarming findings™ be submitted promptly.

Of course.1f these IP"U'J(IOFIS are \m..ltml this then, at least parti-
ally. negrates the valne of those regulations and we must see to the

regulations being followed.

Senator Kexskoy. They were violated here, were they not?

Dr. Scroopr. Yes; indeed they were. But we have numerous in-
stances in which manufacturers have carried out their observations
faithfully. even when the animal data they veponed could or did have
serions consequences for products of great commerer ial importance.

\\ e (lo 1ave many mpt)rh coming in of studies determining carcino-

Sec nnd (ho ve s mnm]vmble rodnn(lﬂnu in animal studies in that
there are multiple studies of a single drug and studies of different
drugs of a single elass. There arve numerous cvpport\mltles for dis-
coveries rr) oceur, even if an individual study is fawed by errors or
carelessness,

The sitnation is similar with food additives. T might sav, just as
an aside. that this is one virtue of a highly complex and at times
comewhat slow regnlatory process that has been criticized recently
in this country.

The primary data for appreval of drugs come from clinical studies
condueresd in humans, Onr svstem of drae development thus pravides
a larze amennt of information about the cafety and effectiveness of
drnes in hamans, in addition to the information obtained in animals.

There are powerful econnmic and legal incentives for drug manu-
facturers to carry out proper animal studies of their products. “Similar
toxicolagical stidies ave dene on closely related drugs by different
drug firms, and eompetitors’ products are not unu)mmonl) included
in such studies,

Animal toxicology is heavily concentrated in industry. and much
professional interchange occurs among scientists i different firns,
While anv seientifie diseipline. like any other occupation, will have
its chare of careless individnals.an entire field of =clence is not likely
to be incompetent or unethical. This professional integrity of toxi-
cologrists in industry helps assure the overall qnahty of animal in-
vestigations.

In summary. T wonld voice a cautions bnt responsible note of re-
assurnnce respeeting the safety of foods and drugs now on the market,
i spite of our findings to date. At the same time, our confidence must.
be somewhat diminished by our recent investigation. It is. therefore,
eszential that steps be taken to assure better performance.

In discussing what we think needs to happen, I would mention this
under three separate headings—-—

Senator Wexyeny. Just before we do that. one of vour points is that
primary data for approval of drugs comes from elinical studies con-
durted in hmmans, We are going to be getting into that on Thursday.

Tiovad 0 ]
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What can you tell us about the reliahility of that data? You have
found in terms of animal data, one major company sufficient cause of
alarm that you're going to tuke a total review, industrywide.

What can you tell us initially about the reliability of clinical studies
conducted in humans? ’

Dr. Sciaior. There are several differences between ihe system of
clinical r earch and this kind of animai research

Senat:r KenxNeoy. We find the systern does not work too well, at
least under present circumstances.

Dr. Sciyior. Clinical research is generally done in medical schools
and places in which the rescarch is done openly with peer review.
Admittedly, the institutional 1oview committees sometimes do not
work well. There are, however, & number of checks and balances for
human research that simply do not exist with the animal research.

Senator Kex~eoy. Even with these checks and balances and even
being done in medical schools, can you give us any assurance that that

system is working very much better than the present system with .

regard to animals? It might be, it should be; but the question is: Is it?
Dr. Scumior. You recall we testified on this at a previous hearing.
We have looked more at clinical research, and I would believe it ac-

curate to state that we have not found the kinds of very serious errors -

or the degree of errors in clinical research which we found in some
of the animal toxicology research. There are things wrong clearly
with both clinical research and the way we monitor that, and again
wea will be talking about that at another point. But there are not very
serious kinds of discrepancies with clinical research.

Also, we require submission to the Agency of the raw data from
clinical research: and we do not for the animal research. When we
evaluate an ND.JA, we do so on the basis of some in-house review of
the raw data. '

Senator Kexxepy. We asked you about this in July, and I think
vou indicated to us that it may very well be a serious problem. In
our July hearing, in a response to a question that I asked, and I
would give you the ritation but we just have the galley now:

As I mentjoned earller, this past month we had a number of Investigations,
examlnations of IND's, NDA’s, examinatlon of certain research has becn con-

ducted. As I Lave indicaled to you, Mr. Chairman, and jour staff, I have be-
come increasingiy alarmed and npset on what we have discovered.

And then I said:

There (3 serlous observation you have made in testimony about much of the
clinfcal work on jobs done in this country, serfously Hawed because of Inatten-
tion or proper planning or conduct of the study or lack of skill on the part of
the investigator.

We are going to develop that point during the course of later testi-
mony. This is a considerable concern.

5o is thers anything that has happened since July to relieve you of
that concern ?

Dr. Scuaor. Noj that concern remains; and I would certainly
repeat what I said previously about clinical research. T think what
I am trying to do here is draw a distinction in degree between some
of the things that we have determined in the Searle investigation and
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what we have determined are the deficiencies in clinical investigation.

I do net think that some of the abysmal findings observed with the
animal work have been observed with the clinical research. Some of
them are the same. Faults in protecol design can be found in both
clinical research and animal research. Inadequate training of research
workers is to be found in both, and sometimes improper data handling
is to be found both in clinical research and animal toxicology re-
cearch. Some of the other things are not common to each and, in
general, clinical research is dore in a much more open fashion.

There is no trade secret problem as we have discussed many times.
There is not the problem with one firm doing all of the work. Clinical
research is very often published in open medical literature, and so on.

[ think there are differencss in deficiencies, certainly, in degree and
on oceasion in kind between the two systems of research.

We do get the raw data in-house on clinical research.

Senator Kexyepy. Do you want to summarize the last part of your
testimony ! [ think vou have covered most of it. )

Dr. Scusipr. We are poing to proceed with the Searle investiga-
tion. as I said, to conclude it promptly and make decisions as to what
the next steps might be, including the decisicn about the urgeney of
further auditing of additional Searle drugs as compared with the
necessity for auditing on & more broad front the performance of the
entire industry.

But we will design and are designing a sampling system for the
industry at Jarge. and we will proceed with that svstem as our re-
sources and our very tired investigators will allow.

Tke final decizians about how many firms we are going to Inspect,
how many studies and so on. will await my determination of the out-
rome, within the nest several weeks, of this Searle investigation; and
then I will be in communication with vou about our next steps.

I think a serinus consideration is the larger question of what
changes need to be made in this system of animal toxicology research
ta assure that studies are of high quality and are entirely reliable. We
have carefully considered a number of alternatives, and again in my
full testimony we have explored at some length various alternatives
that have been suggrested to us by others, other Federal agencies and
by our own staff, But we have rejected some of them as too costly, too
difficult to implement. or both. These included such strategies as Fed-
eral or third-party ronduct of research: continuous on-site monitoring
of research by the GGovernment: and the submission and review of all
raw-animal dota.

A discussion of these alternatives, inciuding our reasons for not
adapting them is contained in my longer statement.

We are recommending the following approach:

Firzt, we—and by *we,” I mean the Federal Government—establish
by regulation animal-testing standards to be known as good laboratory
practice regulations, (GLP's), analogous to nur gond manufacturing
practice regulations;, (GMP's) and require the establishment in phar-
maceutical houses. or other people who do or contract our researcn,
quality control units who would monitor the performance of this re-
search and how it i3 done.
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Second, we must establish a systematic auditing program under
which FDA investigators would inspeet all animal testing facilities
at least annually to determine whether they were operating in com-
plianze with GLP regulations and to audit the records of the quality-
control unit to establish whether or not it was performing its job as
internal monitor.

We must continue to conduct, on an ad hoc basis, indepth retro-
spective review of raw data when there is suspicion of falsification
or serious error. But this approach is enormousﬂ)_y costly in resources,
as the Searle investigation has shown. and cannot be routine.

The sanction employed when poorly conducted studies are discov-
ered should ordinarily be rejection of the studies for any decision-
making purpose. Because of the cost of research, denial of approval is,
in fact, an extremely heavy penalty.

Finally, one of the possibilitics we intend to discuss with other
agencies in our planning for the future is the feasibility of certifica-
tion of animal testing laboratories by the Federal Government. )

I would add that on January 15, 1976, we met with representatives
of the Environmental Protection Agency and the National Cancer
Institute [ NCI] to discuss our mutual concerns in this arca. We have
agreed to cooperate in gathering additional izspectional information
on the pzrformance of toxicology laboratories in this country.

Our first step in this will be to exchange information about the
numbers and kinds of laboratories. to identify the universiiy that I
mentioned conducts these studies. In addition, we have agreed to col-
laborate in drafting any necessary new regulations and to include
other Federal agencies in these decisions.

As some in this room know. T have talked about officials of HEW
and independent agencies: and I can say that evervone is anxious to
contribute to a program that would solve the problems that we have
identified in our investigations.

In summary, Mr. Chairman, members of the committee. we are well
aware that we must pursne the program I have doscrl‘bml——.promptly
and vigorously. The need has been made clear by the investigations I
have reported this morning. We must have an eflective quality-control
system for laboratories engaged in the important work of assuring
the safety of chemicals introduced into our societv. wherever an(! }}ow-
ever they are introduced, including drigs, food additives, pesticides,
and the many other kinds of chemicals that are pervading our en-
vironment today-.

I pledge we will respond to your carlier stated challenge to move
ahead quickly and vigorously and to keep evervone. including the
publie, informed as to the steps we are taking that will accomplish
our goal. )

T appreciate being able to go through this statewnent. Mr. Chairman.
- Senator Bearr. Dr. Schmidt, you have indicated this morning that
in the case of Searle, at. least questionable practices have existed and
research of dubious professional competence has been produced; that
this may or may not be a condition that exists th-oughout the industry.
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Can you assure us these same conditinns do not exist in the public
laboratories that may be operating around the country, performing
animnal toxicolory pxperimentation and research?

Dr. fciopr. No, indeed. [ cannot, with vne possible exception. I
think that what we have HNustrated very graphically 1s the lack of
and the need for Jdetailed. explicit. written practices for laboratories,
practices which would prevert this kind of thing from happening.
['hese o not exist-—

Sepator Beart, Publicand private?

Dr. Scingot. Public and private.

[ am familiar with laboratories in medical schools. T am certainly
familint with our own laboratories. Again. as many people know, we
were highly embarrassed by a study that we performed in our own
laboratories. We had a mixup of two groups of animals getting a test
substance. One of the fascinating things that FDA 1s doing 15 sup-
porting the National Center for Toxicological Research [NCYR];and
one of the things being done there is an examination of the systems
for doing this kind of res arch. which systems would actually be fail
cafe. NCTR has gone a fong way in this regard. Dr. Cranmer, Direc-
tor of that Center, has conzulted frequently with NCI, who is imple-
menting precedures that do upgrade the conduct of this kind of
research. We do know enongh to know that there are practices which,
i followed, would go a long way toward guaranteeing the integrity
and the value of this research. We just have to put these in place and
be sure that thev are followed.

Senator Reann. It wonld seem to me in this instance the seientific
cemimunity onght to be upaet about this. Is there not peer review with-
in the seientitic research commaity that would cause the whole body
of people doing this kind of work to be concerned about what one
aroup may be doing ene place that reflects on the professional com-
petence of the profession?

Dr. Sepnot. 1 would point out two problems with that construct
for animal toxicology research. Firso is that much of this research 1s
done in-honse as a kind of commercial secret. so that the peer review,
the publie examination of these kinds of stndies does not occur.

Qecond. if it does oceur, it occurs way Jate many times. So there is
not the interest in it, and so on. that there 1s in. say, & clinical study
reported in the New England Journal of \ledicine. where everybody
is ot to find out whether 1t ~an be reproduced. and so o1t

Th junds of public control that exist in open research frequently
do not exist with animal toxieology recearch beconse of trade secret
problems. in-house problems. and the types of rescarch that are in-
volved in animal toxicology.

One of the problems with research is that research that is not
fachionable often does not dras the attention of journal editors, prize

~ivers. and the people who admit people to prestigrious societies, and

<o on: so this rescarch is not examined with the interest and fre-

quency that other kinds of research is.
Senator Kexxeny. Al right.
[ The prepased and snmmary statements of Dr. Schmidt follows -]



50 ‘
STATEMENT
gy
ALEXANDER M. SCHMIODT, M.D.
COMMISSTONER
FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION
PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE

CIPRATMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE
BEFORE THE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH
COMMITTEE OR LABOR AND PUBLIC WELFARE
AND

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE |
PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE i

COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICTARY |
UNITED STATES SEHATE g

JANUARY 20, 1976




x

A
Mr. Chairran and Mesbers of the Subcommittees:

We are here this morning to present the Food and Drug Administration’s
views on the quality of arimal testing being conducted on the products
we requlate under the Federal Food, Orug, and Cosmetic Act, and on our

fnvestication of Searle laboratories in this regard.

ROLE OF INOUSTRY

Let re 2egin by emphasizing that under the Federal Food, Orug, and
Cosmetic Act, manufacturers carrv the burden of deronstratina that
their products meet the safety standards of the law. The Food and

Orug Administration (FDA) does relatively little toxicology testing of
its ewn and no clinical testinbg. Instead, we set requirements--that is,
state the type and extent of testing we belijeve is necescary for a
determiraticn of safety--and then review the data submitted by

manufacturers to determine whether they meet these requirerents.

FTA REQUIREMENTS

As an example, we require that all new drugs, food additives, or
potentially toxic residues undergo extensive testing in animals to
determine whether they have any teratogenic potential--that is,
wFether they can produce deformed offspring in animals. Similarly, we
require Tong-term testing of these agents in anicals for potential

carcinogenicity whenever there is the likelihood of chronic exposure



of hurans to such chemicals. [In addition, a host of other toxicolcgy
studies are performed, in which several different species of animals
are exposed to widely differing doses of the compound for periods

of time ranging from 3 few days to many months, ar even years.

PURPOSE OF ANIMAL STUDIES

Ariral studies of human drugs are of particular importance in
deternining whether new products can safely be tested in humans
to 2ssess their potentfal therapeutic effect. The results of such

studies alert investigators to possible adverse effects, afd in

planning the dosages which should properly be studied in humans,
and guide the designing of trials to evaluate the safety and effectiveness }
of the drug in human use. Animal studies are also of great importance
in catemining whether a drug has potentfal teratogenic effects or

sericus long-term effects such as carcinogenesis.

Similariy, with respect to food additives and chemical residues,

including pesticide residues and envircnmental contaminants, animal

testing is also particularly important in assessing the potential for
teratoganic effects or serious long-term effects, including carcinogenesis.
Such testing cannot feasibly be ccnducted in humans. Thus animal data

2re paramount for a determination of safety of these chemicals.

XIED FOR SOUND PROTOCOLS AND QUALITY CONTROL

Zecause of the importance of animal toxicology data to decisions

rezarding the safety of drugs, food additives, chemical residues, ard
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snvircnvectal contaminants, it is pssential that these studies be
conducted arcording to sclentifically scund protocals and with detailed
attenticn to thelr quality cortrol. Major texicological studies are
technicaliy complex, often irvaiving hypdreds of animais tiking different
duses of the test chemical for fonins or years, with zach animal subject
to repcated observations nn growth rate, nytritional status, apcearance,
beh>vior, bleod chemistry values, and the develeoprent of arcss ar microscopic
lesions ‘r the various orgars of the body.
without tre combined efforts of toxiculegists, pathoivgists

statisticians,

anir .1 Rusbandry exparts, end technical persornel.

ST LOTROL PROSLEMS . ‘

| must report that the required attestion to cetail

in cordsoning these studias is sometimes lacking., For some tire

the L% Ris been concerned 25cut the absence of industryaide

stardards for the conduct of zniral studies. The irioriznce

and corslecity of these stusies are by themselves sufficient

reasons to recosmend such a program. But, in addition, there is now

growing evidence of significant quality contrc] probiers in these

laboratories. Some of this evidence es from the Searle investigation

and some from other investigitions conducted by the Agency.

the

My purpsse today 1s to revies the experience of

and, on the basis of this experience, to outline the

FCA in this area

anproach the FDA

intends to take to irprove the way manufacturers carry cut their
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studies and the way we Bonitor és;{r perfarmance. As we

testified before your Subcormittees on July 10, 1975,

corplete and accurate data are essential to rational decisiormaking
by bath the industry and the FDA. There can be no compromise in
our insistence on accurate scientific data. That {s a fundamental

principle of both law and medicine.

RECENT HISTORY OF FDA INVESTIGATIONS OF ANIMAL LABCRATORIES

On ore well-publfcized occasion, we discovered that animal data were
fmproperly withheld or falsitfed. In 1962, Richardscn-Merrell
Laboratovies were in possession of dog and rat data on Mer-29,a drug
intended to reduce serum cholestrol which, had the data been submitted
in accurate form in the new drug application (HDA), would have led to
an earlier recognition of the drug's capacity to cause cataracts and

certainly would have affected the drug's marketing status.

in 1965 plans were developed by the Divisfon of Toxicolegical €valuation
of the then Bureau of Scientific Standards and Evaluation for a survey
to determine how well animal studies were conducted and the data

fron trem recorded and transmitted.

Records are available concerning at least one visit conducted under
the 1965 program. The program was disrupted by a reorganizaticn in
nid-1966 that placed the reviewing pharmacologists of the Divisicn
;f Toxfcological Evaluation into the various divisions of the then

Bureau of Medicine.




w
(23

.5 -

In 1959, new plans were developed for gite visits to 1aboratories
conducting animal studies to be conducted by the supervisory
pharmaco1nqist and staff pharmacologists from each of the six revjewing

divisions of the Office of New Drugs and the Office of Marketed Drugs.

A few site visits were conducted under this program, and in FY 1971

an gxpandeg program was developed. This program Was more directly
related to requlatory action, and coverage wWas broidened by utilization
of field resources. The Scientific [nvestigations staff, which until
then had inspected only clinical investigators, was augmented by a
pharmacologist. and a program was developed with the cooperation of

the Office of Compliance and the Executive pirector for Regional
Operations for conducting both routine inspections and for-cause

visits to Jaboratories whose reports had raised questions.

A number of the investigations carried out under this program were
discussed at the July 1975 hearings. These iﬁvestigations indicated

that ‘mportant information derived from animal studies was sometimes
reported late, oOr apparently withheld from the Fna. A4s a consecuence, the
gureau of Drugs has drafted proposed regulatfons to ensure prompt and

timely reporting of animal safety studies.

TESTIMONY AT JULY 10, 1975 HEARING
At the July 10, 1975 hearing of the subcomittees, we described the
questions that had arisen regarding the integrity of animal data

cubmitted to the Food and Drud Administration (FOA) in support of
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safety of drugs. Specifically, we presented evidence arising from

inspections of the G. O. Searle Company which reviewed studies on

Flagyl and on Aldactone.

Flagyl had been approved for short-term treatment of trichomoniasis.

When the firm sought to investigate this drug for a condition requiring

prolonged administration, it was asked to perform long-term animal

studies. Review of theia sine.es fou. 4 discrepancies between jndividual

animal findings and summary tabulatciuns, and 2 resubmission jntended to

clarify the matter appeared rather to confound it furthar. St was

therefore decided that an inspection by our scientists of the raw data

at the firm was in crder.

while this investication was in progress, the second drud, Aldactone,

was undergoing review for presentation to an advisory committee because

animal studies reported to us in March 1975, suggested that 1t was

an animal carcinogen. Qur review of the Aldactone ctudies also
revealed a number of deficiencies and discrepancies in the tzbulation
and analyses of the data by the fimm. As 2 consequence, our analysis

and conclusions were quite different from the presentation made by
representatives of the firm pefore the advisory committee in June 1975.

In an attempt to determine the circumstances under whi

and discrepancies occurred, Drs. frances Kelsey and Adrian Gross visited

cearle shortly after the advisory commi ttee meeting.

ch the deficiencies
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From these pre\iminary investigations we concluded that an indepth

ns of the firm was very msch in

1975 to

study of the experimenta1 animal operatio

order and, s you recall, we agreed at the hearing of suly 10,
investigate the animal studies submitted in suppor £ of Gearte drugs marketed
e in the investi;ation

since 1963. subsequently, We decided to inciud

additional gubmissions from Searle, including the investﬂgational drug

Norpace and the food additive Aspartame.

SEARLE INVESTIGATION

Yo conduct the jnvestigation of animal studies at Searle efficizntly

and expeditious\y a Task Force W3S created composed of representatives

of the Buread of Drugs. Gffice of the General Counsel, Acsocizte

Comissionar fqr Compliance, and the Executive nirector for Fagional

Operations. The Task Force ig chaired by Mr. Cavlton Shavb. 2

Compliance neficer in the Bureau of Drugs, who h2s been given co-plete

authority 2 assign investiqationa] activities to £pA persornzl.
The Task Force was crarged:

1. To review the practices of the 6.D. Searle Company in
conducting animal experinments, in analyzing the data
from these experiments, and in submitting this jnformation :

to thz FDA:

- 2. 7o deternine if there 1S avidence that any oractices of

Searle in conducting the above activities are in violaticn of

the FD5C Act or 2ny other laws of the United States: and
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3. To recormend an appropriate course of action based upon the

findings of the investigation.

The Task Force reports to a Steering Commi ttee composed of the Commissioner,

the Deputy Cormissioner, the Associate commissioner for Compliance, the

Director of the Bureau of Drugs, the Executive Director for Regional

Qperations, and the Gereral Counsel for FOA. The Steering Committee

oversees the progress of the investigation and sevves as a deciding
hody for major issues of policy and investigative strategy. A

~opy of my recorandun of July 23, 1975, which established the

investigation Task Force and Steering Committee will be submitted

for the record.

PLAN FOR INVESTISATION
The Task Force began work in ﬂugust 1975 and promptly prepared 4
plan for the jnvestigation which called for:

1. ldentification »f Searle animal studies sybmitted to the

FDA since January 1, 1968;

2. Developrent of criteria for the selection of products and

studies to be reviewed and investigated;

3. Selection and crientation of headguarters and field

personnei required to conduct the investigation; and,

4. Establishment of mechanisms for the actual conduct of

the investigation at Searle and contractor Jaboratories.

The investigative plan will also be submitted for the record.
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gecause the iavestigation involved 2 pixture of 1aw enforcement

and ccientific rroblems, the Task force recormended the formation

of teams to ipeastigate the ipdividual studies, each composed of

two specially cyalified dru3 investrgators from various pistrict

offices of FOA 2nd cne OF twd pharrecolcgists from the Bureau of

Drugs and Sure2d of Foods.

Mr. Philip Brodsey, one of FDA's Tost experiented drug investigators,

was setected 2s the lead investigator to direct all field aspects of

the fnvestigation and report directly to the Task Force. In order

to provide expert scientific corsultaticn to the Task Force and to

the field investigators, or. willize D' Aguanno, assistant rssociate
Director for Xe< Grug Eveluztien (?narracology—1nxicology). was

assigned to war ith the Tas Force on 2 full-time basis.

Or. Adrian 6ross of the geientific {ryestications staff was
assigned to provide fyll-tine corsuitation in pathalosy and
statistics to the field ipvesticative tearms and to work directly
with the lead jnvzstigator 2t tfe cezrle plant. pr. William Fairweather,
2 statistician in the Division of Bioretrics, was assigned to review

stat\stica\ precedures used by the fira as well as to consult with

the investigatiomz\ teams.

Initially the jnvestigation had Se2n planned for four tears at

searle, each corsisting of two jnysssigaters and ore pharracoﬁogist,

It was noted, howaver, that a 12rg2 nuber of studies cubnitted in

support of Searle products kad teen conducted by the Hazleton

Labaratories in Falls Church, Virginia. in late Septerder,
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the nuwber of teams was expanded to ¢ix so that ¢irmultanenys
investigation could be undertaken of studies conducted by Searle

at its Laboratories in Skokie, {1linois 2nd by the Hazleton

Laborateries in virginia.

Review of Searle submissions

As a first step, each of the new drug evaluation divisions of the
Bureau of Orugs and the Division of Toxicology of the Bureau of

Foods rev1eyed all Searle submissions of animal data since

July 1, 1968, to identify the Yaboratory which performed the study.

the purpose of the study (reproductive, metabolic, chronic, acute,
etc.), the animal species jnvolved, the duration of the study, and

the route of administration of the product. Included in this revied
were submissions on new studies of Aidactane and Flagyl, the drugs
which had been discussed in the July 1575 hearings: interim reports

on a long-term study of Ovulen, an oral contraceptive, and studies

on CU-7, an intrauterine device, both of which are rarketed; Aspartame,
an approved food additive the firm had voluntarily withheld from
rarketing pending a hearing to review safety questions raised by public
objectors;_Nerpace. a cardiovascular drug for which there ijs a pending
new drug application; and Syncro-Mate, 2 veterinary drug-

selection Criteria

The Task Force then established criteria for selecting the products and

the specific studies to be investigated intensively. The highest priority

products were jdentified as those which involved the greatest number of

person-years of exposure; food additives were placed ahead of drugs. The

selection criteria are presented as Appendix A




